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These proceedings were instituted by an order of the
Commission dated October 14, 1965, pursuant to Sectionsg 15(b),
154, and 19(a)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
("Exchange Act") to determine whether respondents, singly and
in concert, wilfully violated and wilfully aided and abetted
violations of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act'")
and the Exchange Act and rules thereunder as alleged by the
Divigion of Trading and Markets ("Division"), and whether
remedial action pursuant to Sections 15(b), 15A, and 19(a)(3)
of the Exchange Act is necessary.

The Division alleged, in substance, that in offering,
selling, and effecting trensactions in the common stock of
Alexander Hamilton Life Insurance Company ("Hamilton Life")
during the period from November, 1963 to August 31, 1964 the
respondents wilfully violated and wilfully aided and abetted
violations of Sections 5(a) end (c), and 17(a) of the Securities
Act and Sections 10(b) and 15(c)(1l) of the Exchange Act and
Rules 10b-5, 10b-6, 15¢cl-2, and 15¢l-5 thereunderl/by certain
conduct and by making and causing to be made untrue statements
and omitting statements of material facts concerning that conduct,
and concerning Hamilton Life and its stock. Allegedly, respond-

ents obtained control of registrant in the latter part of 1963,

1/ The Division having failed to pursue its charge of violation

"  of Rule 10b-6 in its proposed findings and conclusions, no
further consideration will be given to that alleged violationg
that charge is hereby dismissed.
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incorporated Hamilton Life in the State of Michigan in October,
1963, and, in the course of a public offering by Hamilton Life
of its common stock during the period from November, 1963 to

on or about April 20, 1964, sold 2,182,000 ghares of Hamilton
Life stock which had not been registered under the Securities
Act to residents and non-residents of Michigan. Following
completion of the public offering, respondents allegedly
offered and sold, and bid for and purchased Hamilton Life stock
vhile dominating, controlling, and menipulating its market price
by means of transactions which arbitrarily eand artificielly
influenced that price and created a false and misleading impres-
sion of the market for Hamilton Life stock. The alleged nmis-
representations and omigsions concerned the existing and pros-
pective market price of Hamilton Life stock, the amount of
insurance in force issued by Hemilton Life, the common control
of Hamilton Life and registrant, and the domination, control,
and manipulation of the market for and market price of Hamilton
Life stock.

The Division further charged that in the offer and sale
of stock of Windsor Raceway Holdings, Limited ("Windsor Raceway"),
respondents, singly and in concert, wilfully violated, and wil-
fully aided and abetted violations of Section 17(a) of the Securi-

ties Act and Sections 10(b), 15(¢c)(1), and 17(a) of the Exchange
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2/
Act and Rules 10b-5, 15¢1-2, and 17a-3 thereunder by sending

confirmations of purchase of, and telegrams seeking payments
for, unordered Windsor Raceway stock, and by making entries
relating to such purported transactions in registrant's books
and records.

General denials of the alleged misconduct or assertions
of lack of sufficient information to admit or deny those alle-
gations were filed on behalf of respondents. All respondents
sppesred through counsel who participated throughout the hearing.

As part of the post-hearing procedures, successive
filings of proposed findings, conclusions, and supporting briefs
wvere specified. Timely filings thereof were made by the parties
to these proceedings.

The findings and conclusions herein aere based upon the

record and upon observation of the various witnesses.

Re.!gndents

Armstrong Jones and Company ("registrant"), under its
present name and previous styles of Armstrong, Jones, Lawson &
White, Inc. and of Charles P. White Company, has been registered
under the Exchange Act as a broker-dealer since August, 1957. 1t

is a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.,

2/ The Division no longer contends that Campeau, Owens, Bruce, or
Safford participated i{n or eided and sbetted violations involv-
ing the Windsor Raceway offering.
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and a member firm of the Detroit Stock Exchange.

Thomas W. Itin has been a director of registrant since
September, 1963 and also beceme its president at that time.
George A. Reuter, a director and vice-president of registrant
since at least August, 1962, has had continuous and direct
responsibility for registrant's trading department since that
time. Rene F. Campeau was registrant's executive vice-president
in charge of sales from January, 1964 until on or about Janu-
ary 4, 1965 and was a director from approximately December 7,
1964 to January 4, 1965.

E. Keith Owens was one of the promoters of Hamilton
Life and has been chairman of its board of directors since its
incorporation on October 31, 1963 under the laws of Michigen;
he has not been associated with registrant itself in any offi-
cial capacity. Chearles H. Bruce, president and & director of
Hamilton Life since its inception, was a director of registrant
from September 24, 1963 to December 7, 1964. ' Robert O. Safford,
vice-president and director of Hamilton Life since its inception,
was also a director of registrant during the period that Bruce

served in the same capacity.

Hamilton Life

Hemilton Life, a Michigan corporation, was incorporated

on October 31, 1963 for the purpose of engaging in business as



-5 -

an insurance company. Owens conceived the idea of forming
Hamilton Life end with Bruce, Safford, snd another associate,
James H. Milby, carried that ides through to reality.

Funds with which to commence operations were obtained
by an offering of Hemilton Life stock made. under a claimed
exemption from the registration provisions of the Securities
Act available for intrastate offeringo.él Initially, the offer-
ing by Hamilton covered 1,500,000 shares of Class A stock and
920,000 shares of Class B stock, with the Class A stock being
offered to the public at $4 per share?l Mid-Western Investment
Corporation, an intrastate broker-dealer formed for the purpose
of distributing Hamilton Life stock and wholly owned by Owens,
was named as underwriter, and registrant and snother Detroit
securities firm, F. J. Winckler Co., composed the selling group.
The Class B shares, which under certain conditions became con-
vertible and eventually were converted into Class A shares on
a basis of one Class A share for 2-1/2 Cless B shares, were not
offered publicly, but subscribed for at a price of $1 per share
by Alexander Hamilton Corporation ("Hsmilton Corp.") for whom

Owens, Bruce, and Safford also acted as officers and directors.

3/ Section 3(a)(11), 15 U.S.C. 77c(a)(11).

4/ No registration statement with respect to the securities of
Hamilton Life was ever filed pursuant to the Securities Act.
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The offering of Class A shares commenced on or about
November 14, 1963, and met with no marked enthusiasm until about
March 1, 1964 when subscriptions began to be received at a rate
that the underwriter could not process. On March 23, 1964 the
offering was terminated by Owens in order to determine the extent
of the subscriptions; a few days leter, the offering was found
to have been oversubscribed by 682,000 shares. After consultation
with the Michigan Securities Commission, offers of rescission were
made to subscribers which resulted in rescission of subscriptions
to approximately 25,000 shares that were then resold to persons
associated with Hamilton Life. Trading of Hamilton Life stock in
the over-the-counter market began on April 27, 1964 with the first
sale by registrant to a retail customer being for 100 shares at
7-1/2.

Hemilton Life received its certificate of authority to
do business on April 30, 1964 snd began offering life insurance
to the public on May S, 1964. During the first month, nearly
$15,400,000 worth of permanent life insurance was written by
the company, and by the end of 1964, there was $60,000,000 of
insurance in force which increased to $138,000,000 ags of Decem-
ber 31, 1965. An operating loss of about $81,000 waes incurred
by Hamilton Life during its first eight months ending December
31, 1964, end a further loss of about $280,000 during the year

1965.
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"“"Common Control" of Registrant and Hamilton Life, and Respondents'

Concert of Action

Owens first gave thought in 1960 or 1961 to the forma-
tion of the insurance company that eventually became Hamilton
Life because of his dissatisfaction with the operations of Land of
Lincoln Life Insurance Company, for whom he was acting as a
regional sales director in Peoria, 1llinois. Milby, who was
treasurer and a director of Land of Lincoln, joined with Owens
in attempts to bring about cheanges they wanted in that company,
and failing that they started to give considerstion to a new
insurance company. In 1962, Owens met Safford, then connected
with sales training in a company which was marketing its products
by the door-to-door sales method. Safford became interested in
Owens' projected insuramnce company, and with Owens spent consid-
erable time in formulatsng plans for its creation. During this
planning stage, Safford shifted his employment to that of sales
agent for Land of Lincoln and before leaving became another one
of its Illinois regional sales directors. After Safford's com-
mitment to the project, Owens approached Bruce, then a vice-
president with 1llinois Mid-Continent Life Insurance Co., and
persuaded him to become the fourth member of the nucleus. As a
result of conversations, initiaelly with Safford, and later with
Owens and Bruce, Itin sssociated himself with the group about
August, 1962 with the understanding that he was to be one of the

regionel sales directors of Hamilton Life.
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In June, 1962 plans for the formation of Hamilton Life
were reduced to writing and supplemented by minutes of meetings
held by the group thereafter. Statisticel studies of the insur-
ance field caused the group to select Michigan as the best state
in which to form their company, and beginning in August, 1962
members of the group moved to Michigan to locate office space,
recruit personnel, resolve legel problems, and perform other
necessary spade work essential to putting a new insurance company
into operation.

Itin moved to Michigen in Februery, 1963 and anticipating
that Hamilton Life would soon receive its Michigan charter,
rented an office in Grosse Pointe for his agency operations.

About June or July, 1963 while the group was still waite-
ing for Hamilton Life's charter to be issued, Itin asked Owens,
Safford,and Bruce to join with him in the purchese of a controlling
interest in registrant. They were agreeable to this proposition
and Itin, by September, 1963, acquired between 75% and 807 of
registrant's stock for the benefit of the group. On September 24,
1963 Bruce, Sefford, and 1tin became three of registrant's seven
directors and 1tin at the same time became registrant's president.
When registrant's boerd of directors was reduced to five on Octo-
ber 16, 1963, they became the majority of the board with Itin
serving as chairmen. Reuter and Charles A. Dean, registrant's

attorney, filled the other two seasts. Owens intended to become
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a director of registrant, but becsuse of a problem neesssi-
tating rescission of sales he had made in Illinois of stock of
another insurance company, did not become so associasted with
registrant. However, Owens was present at some of registrant's
directors’' meetings, and a confidential "Weekly Management
Report" prepared by Itin covering significant aspects of regis-
trant's operations was furnished to Owens by Itin continuously
from January, 1964 to at least July 31, 1964.

When Hamilton Life received its charter et the end
of October, 1963,0wens, Bruce, Safford, and Itin geve imme-
diate consideration to finding a new president for registrant
so that Itin would be able to devote full attention to his
contemplated Grosse Pointe insurance agency. The group's
unsuccessful sesrch for a suitable replecement made Itin decide,
sometime around the first part of 1964, to give up the Grosse
Pointe agency and remain with registrant. Following that
decision, the group realigned the respective investments in
registrant under an agreement whereby Owens, Bruce, and Sefford
sold their stock interests in registrant to Itin. The agree-
ment provided that Itin would give each of the former a per-
sonal six per cent promissory note corresponding to the emouht
of eeach one's investment in registrant's stock, and further
that registrant would pay monthly to each of them, including

Itin, a sum equal to $100 plus 1% of the emount of their
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respective stock investments. The latter amount was paid

by registrent by means of payments of $850 per month from
March, 1964 through September, 1964 to Mid-Western Orgeni-
zational Consultants, Inc., a Michigan corporstion formed

in April, 1964 whose stock was owned equally by Owens, Bruce,
Safford, and Itin.

Mid-Western Orgenizational Consultants was conceived
es a vehicle theough which income derived from any "'deal"
worked on or in regard to which consulting help was given
by Owens, Bruce, Safford, and Itin would be funneled and
divided emongst the four. Although not incorporated until
April, 1964 Mid-Western Organizational Consultents or a
similar organization was in the minds and plans of Owens,
Bruce, Safford,and Itin as early es October, 1963 when
registrant, by action of its board of directors in which Itin,
Bruce, and Safford participated as a majority of the five
directors present, voted to retain the consulting services
of "Mid-Western Consultants." Besides payments from regis-
trant, Mid-Western Orgenizational Consultents received 'con-
sulting fees" during 1964 from Hamilton Life representing
the "override" 1tin was entitled to in connection with the
sale of Hamilton Life shares sold through registrant during
the public offering, and from National Retirement Life

Insurance Company in payment of Owens' consulting assistance
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relating to an offering of its stock in which registrant per-
ticipated. Another part that Mid-Western Orgenizational
Consultants played in the Hamilton Life offering took place
shortly after March 23, 1964 when Itin brought up the subject
of changing the distribution of the underwriting commissions
attributeble to sales of the oversubscribed etock.S/ Itin's
proposal that as to the oversubscribed stock Mid-Western
Organizational Consultants be given the percentage of the
commissions which had been allocated to Mid-Westerm Investment,
Bruce, Safford, and Milby on the initially offered shares, was
rejected by Mid-Western Organizational Congultants by a three
to one vote, Itin being outvoted by Owens, Bruce, and Safford.
The record establishes beyond peradventure that Owens,
as the dominant person, with Bruce, Safford, and Milby as close
associates, controlled the policies and operations of Hemilton
Life throughout the period in question. Owens, Bruce, and
Safford, in company with Itin and Reuter, also appear to have
eontrolled registrant during the period in question relating
to the public offering of and trading in Hamilton Life stock.
Although not associated in an official capacity with registrant,

Owens displayed an interest in registrant's operations and

5/ The 15% underwriting commission on the original offering of
1,500,000 shares was divided on the basis of 8% to the selling
agent; 4% to the underwriter, Mid-Western Investment; and 12
each to Bruce, Safford, and Milby.
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received consideration and treatment from Itin over and beyond
that which could be expected if Owens were merely a creditor
of Itin and registrent. Moreover, from September, 1963, when
Owens contributed $16,600, over 35% of the amount used by Itin
to purchase registrant's stock, until early 1964, when his
interest was converted to that of a creditor, Owens was at
least a beneficiel owner of 257 of registrant's stock. Owens
participated in management decisions relating to Itin's com-
pensation as registrant's president and to a possible replace-
ment for him in that position. Bruce and Safford, by their
actions as directors of registrant and as associates of Owens
and 1tin in plans and activities affecting registrant before,
after, and during their tenure as directors of registrant,
likewise demonstrated that they, with Owens and Itin, were in
control of registrant. By virtue of their interlocking direc-
torates for the period in which Bruce and Safford acted as
directors of both Hamilton Life and registrant, and of the
control found to have been possessed and exercised by Owens,
Bruce, and Safford over Hamilton Life and registrant, it is
further found that Hamilton Life and registrant were under
“common control" during the period relevant to this matter.
Respondents agree that the determination of control
is basically a fectual rather than legal matter, but argue that

the facts here cannot lead to a finding of "common control."



Respondents contend that the Division's assertion of "absolute
community of interest" of Owens, Bruce, Safford, and Itin is
erroneous, that Itin alone controlled registrant, and that

he was without controlling influence over Hemilton Life. Al-
though the Division's conclusion that an "absolute community
of interest" existed in these four respondents is too encom-
passing, the facts do reflect a substantial identity of busi-
ness interest among them. Their interests varied only in
degree between the companies in which they had those interests
and revolved around the talents each of the four could respec-
tively contribute to the advancement of Hamilton Life and
registrant and to the accomplishment of the objectives of
Mid-West Organizational Consultents. The mutuality of inter-
est, however, is only one of the considerations that enter
into the finding of "common control," end standing alone is
not decisive. As argued by the respondents, the identity of
interest does not establish that Itin was a member of Hamilton
Life's control group. But respondents’' further contention
that Owens, Bruce, and Safford, who were in control of
Hemilton Life, did not have a controlling influence on regis-
trant is rejected as contrary to the facts which evidence
such influence even though day to day operations were left
entirely in Itin's hands. It is because Owens, Bruce, and

Safford had a controlling influence over both Hemilton Life



- 16 -

and registrant, and not because Itin had such influence in
Hemilton Life, that "common control" is found to have existed
during the period in question.

The factual fabric that impels a finding of '"common
control" of Hamilton Life and registrant also lends itself to
the conclusion that respondents gcted in concert in connection
with the offering, selling, and effecting transactions in
Hemilton Life stock during the alleged periods. Further, the
similarity of the plans and methods used in the creastion,
financing and operations of Hamilton Life to those found in
connection with previous experiences of the promoters, espe-
cially with the Land of Lincoln Life Insurance Co., argues
strongly that the alleged activities of the respondents formed
steps in an overall plan in which Owens, Bruce, and Safford
participated from the beginning and registrant, Itin, Reuter,
and Cempeau later joined. The use of Hamilton Corporation for
the purpose of organizing and investing in Hemilton Life instead
of the promoters doing so directly appears to have resulted from
the fact that other insurance companies had adopted such indirect
method. Mid-Western Investment's function in underwriting the
Heamilton Life offering corresponds to that apparently performed
by Universal Securities Corporation with which Owens and Milby
were associated at the time of the formation of Land of Lincoln,

and registrant's place in the scheme was obviously to duplicate



with respect to Hemilton Life stock the role that had been
played by Central 1llinois Investment Company, a securities
firm formed by Owens in Illinois, in making & market for Land
of Lincoln stock. The fact that control of registrant was
purchased instead of a new securities firm's being brought
into existence is not significent in making the comparison.
The purchase was undoubtedly advantageous to the group in
view of the fact that et the time of the purchase the pro-
moters still hoped for an early charter for Hsmilton Life

and undoubtedly anticipated the need for a market for its
stock shortly thereafter. With registrant in existence, delay
involved in bringing & new firm into existence and operation
would be avoided.

The evidence does not sustain the allegation that
registrant, Itin, and Reuter acted in concert in connection
with the offer and sale of Windsor Raceway stock. As noted
before, the Division makes no contention that the other respond-

ents participated im that activity.

Sale of Unregistered Hamilton Life Stock

Some thought was given in the planning stage of Hamilton
Life to filing a registration statement under the Securities Act
to cover the contemplated public offering of Hamilton Life stock.

However, the delays encountered in obtaining a charter for
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Hamilton Life from Michigan authorities, the further delay
enticipated in the registration process under the Securities
Act, and the advice of counsel engaged by the promoters in
Michigan that Securities Act registration was not necessary
if the stock were sold only in Michigen, caused the promoters
to decide not to register Hamilton Life's stock under the
Securities Act. Further delays csused by the rejection of
Hamilton Life's initial filing with the Michigan Insurance
Commission resulted in the promoters engaging es new counsel
the law firm of Joslyn, Joslyn and Dean, which firm made the
filings that became effective during the latter part of 1963.
During the course of the public offering of Hamilton
Life stock, numerous inquiries from non-residents of Michigan,
including friends and acquaintances seeking to purchase shares
at the $4 offering price, were received and handled by Owens
and Itin. Invariably the inquiries were answered by a refusal
to sell the shares being offered by Hamilton Life to such non-
residents. However, Owens further advised non-residents that
orders for Hamilton Life stock could be placed with registrant
and F. J, Winckler Co. for execution after the public offering
had been completed, and Itin, in replying, solicited placement
of orders for execution in the trading market. Independent of
such inquiries and prior to the completion of the offering,

1tin also solicited orders for later execution from non-residents
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who had given some indication of interest in Hamilton Life
stock, and accepted checks that were payment for the stock
to be purchased.

The record discloses that the intrastate exemption
from registration under the Securities Act was not aveilgble
for the Hamilton Life offering because sales of stock were
not restricted to residents of Michigan. Although the
out-of-state sales were few and involved & comparatively
small number of shares of Hemilton Life stock, the consequence
insofar as naking’the intrastate exemption unavailable is
unchanged.é/

Two of the out-of-state sales occurred when non-
residents used Michigan residents as agents and nominees. In
one instance, a friend of Itin, E.T.S., and two acquaint-
ances of E.-T.S., R.D.R, and R,N., all of whom were 1llinois
residents, used A.C.U., an uncle of R.D.R. living in Cassopolis,
Michigan, to subscribe to 1,000 shares. Payment was in the
form of a treasurer's check for $4,000 issued by a Chicago
savings and loan association and payable to registrant. Itin

returned the check to A.C.U. with 8 request for a new check

payable to the bank acting as escrow agent in connection with

6/ See Edsco Manufacturing Co., Inc., Securities Act Release
No. 4413, p. 4-5 (September 20, 1961); Universal Service
Corporation, Inc., 37 S.E.C. 559, 564 (1957).
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the offering. On or about March 23, 1964, the terminal date
for acceptence of subscriptions, Itin telephoned A.C.U. concern-
ing payment for the 1,000 shares, and was sdvised by A.C.U. that
he did not have the money and would request R.D.R. to send
Itin a check for $4,000. A.C.U. then telephoned Chicago and
left a message for R.D.R. to telephone 1Itin. 1n the telephone
conversation that followed between RID.R. and Itin, the problem
of msking payment before midnight was solved by Itin's making
payment by his personal check upon R.D.R's promise to send a
check in repayment on the following morning. When the certif-
icate for 1,000 shares was received in due course by A.C.U., he
mailed it to E.T.S., who caused the stock to be transferred
about June, 1964 into three certificates of 800, 100, and 100
shares, which represented the respective interests of the three
actual purchasers.

The second instance of purchases by non-residents through
a resident involved D.E.W., a resident of Indiana who was a
friend of Owens. Around Jenuary, 1964 D.E.W. discussed with
D.L.Y., a Michigan resident, the purchase of Hamilton Life's
stock ip the latter's name. Thereafter D.L.Y. received a pros-
pectus and five subscription forms from Owens, who meiled this
material at D.E.W.'s request. D.L.Y. then returned the five
subscriptions, each signed by him, with five checks covering an

aggregate purchase of 750 shares of Hamilton Life stock and
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payment of $3,000 therefor. These subscriptions in fact rep-
resented purchases of 200 shares by D.L.Y., 150 shares by
D.E.VW., 250 sheares by an Indiana investment company of which
D.E.W. was a stockholder, 50 shares by D.L.D., an Indians
resident, and 100 shares for M.R., another Indiana resident.
The certificate for 750 shares subsequently received by
D.L.Y. was meailed to registrant in early June, 1964 with a
request that the shares be transferred; the new certificates
were to be issued in the names of the resl purchasers in the
respective indicated amounts. 1Itin's suspicions were aroused
by D.L.Y.'s transfer request, end he asked D.L.Y. for more
information about the indicated sales to the named transfer-
ees, .but Itin did not follow up his letter when D.L.Y. did
not answer. The transfers were thereafter effected in accord-
ance with D.L.Y.'s request, and new certificates were issued.
A third out-of-state sale occurred when Owens sub-
scribed to 375 shares of Ramilton Life stock for which he
paid with $1,500 entrusted to him for investment by C.M., a
resident of Kensas. No trust agreement had been executed
between Owens and C.M., but an oral sgreement was in effect
under which C.M. had given to Owens for investment purposes
$1,000 in March, 1963 and $500 on or about April 11, 1964.
Pursuant to Owens' requests in May and June, 1964, two cer-

tificates (one for 250 shares, the other for 125 sheres)
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were issued in the nemes of Owens snd C.M. In May, 1965
Owens had these certificates canceled end the shares trans-
ferred into C.M's name.

Respondents argue that Owens' subscription to 375
shares for C.M. did not result in a sale to a non-resident
of Michigan. Underlying the argument is the theory that
where an issuer sells to a trustee, the trustee's residence,
not that of the beneficiary, governs the determtnstion of
whether the sale was made to a non-resident. The theory
appears to have -erit,zﬁut has no applicability here where
Owens did not act in a manner consistent with the claim that
he was a trustee. Owens subscribed for the shares not as
a trustee, but in his own ngme; directed that the ghares
be issued not in his name as trustee, but in his own name
and that of C.M., and later directed that the shares be
transferred out of his name and reissued in the name of C.M.
slone. At no time did Owens retain the entire legal title
to the shares in question, or exercise the powers of a
trustee. While C.M. might well have held Owens to the
obligations of a "con-truétive trustee,"” Owens was not &
trustee insofar as Hemilton Life or registrant is concerned.
Nor does it sppear that Owens intended to do anything more,

with respect to his relationship to C.M., than to accommodate

7/ See 1 Loss, Securities Regulation, 599-600 (2d ed. 1961).
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and assist C.M. in selecting an investment. Certainly there is
no evidence that he intended to establish and control a trust
estate which could be conceived as a source of local funds which
would provide part of the "local financing" contemplated by the
intrastate exe-ption.gl
Respondents further contend that any violation of Section
5 arising out of the sales to non-residents in the noted three
instances cannot be considered wilful because respondeats had
been imposed upon by non-residents who used deception to achieve
their ends in the first two instances, and in the third one,
Owens had acted in good faith as a supposed trustee. The conten-
tion is bottomed on the concepts that reasonable care or precau-
tion to avoid sales to non-residents is the standard to be applied
in determining whether the intrastate exemption has been destroyed,
end that, in any event, a violation is not wilful if the person
charged did not know that sales had been mgde to non-residents.
These contentions are rejected as inconsistent with gettled law.
The intrastate exemption under Section 3(a)(1ll) affords
an exemption with respect to "securities which are 'a part of an o

issue offered and sold' only to residents of the state in questionf“

Since Section 3(a)(11) provides an exemption from the general

8/ See Securities Act Release No. 4386, July 12, 1961.

9/ 1bid.
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requirements for registration, it must be "strictly construed"
10/

sgainst the claimant thereof. The refusal of the courts to
widen the availability of intrastate exemption by preserving
it in the absence of intent or knowledge regarding non-
resident sales was indicated in S.E.C. v. Hillsborough Invest-
ment Corp., 173 F. Supp. 86, 88 (D. N.H. 1958), wherein the
court observed:

No reason has been suggested why the broad

language of section 3(a)(11) should exempt

issues where some allegedly sporadic and

unintentional sales have been made to non-

residents, provided that the remainder are

sold only to residents.

Measured by the rule of "strict construction,”" the
presence or absence of either intent or knowledge with respect
to the occurrence of out-of-state sales is immaterial on the
question of whether the intrastate exemption has been destroyed.
In this view it is cleer that even without regard to Owens'
purchese for C.M., the two sales to the resident agents of
non-residents were sufficient to destroy the intrastate exemp-

11/
tion for the Hamflton Life offering. Moreover, it has been

10/ See S.E.C. v. Sunbeam Gold Mines Co., 95 F. 2d 699, 701
(9th Cir. 1938); S.E.C. v. Children's Hospital, 214 F. Supp.
883, 888 (D, Ariz. 1963).

11/ Further, even were the destruction of the intrastate exemp-
tion dependent upon knowledge of the person claiming the
exemption that an out-of-state sale has been made, it ap-
pears from the record that the circumstances relating to the
sale of 1,000 shares to A.C.U. were sufficient to put Itin
on notice that A.C.U. was purchasing those shares for non-
residents.
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the Commission's consistent view that a single sale to a

non-resident sufficed to destroy the exemption for the entire

1ssue.lzlﬂarah as such rule may seem from the stendpoint of

a person seeking to utilize the intrastate exemption, it is

consongnt with and advances the philosophy of the Securities

Act which is to provide, through registration, for the full

and fair disclosure of the character of securities being sold.
The fact that respondents may not have been aware

that sales had been made out-of-state or may not have intended

to make such sales would also be immaterial on the question

of "wilfulness." Whether the violation was wilful depends

not upon whether the intrastate exemption was wilfully de-

stroyed but upon whether the acts that constituted the viols-

tion were "wilful." Here, the Section 5 violations arise

out of the fact that the Hamilton Life stock wes offered and

sold by use of the mailg without a registration statement

being on file or in effect. The sales to ncn-residents, whe-

ther or not knowingly made to persons of that status, establish

that the intrestate exemption from the provisions of the Securi-

ties Act was not available for that offering. Since "wilfulness"

for the purposes of this proceeding requires no more then that

12/ See Professional Investors Inc., 37 S.E.C. 173, 175 (1956);
Universal Service Corporation, inc., supra.
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13/
the respongible respondents knew what they were going, and

since those respondents who are here found to have committed
the Section 5 violations knew or scted in concert with respond-
ents who knew that unregistered stock was offered and sold,
such violations were "wilful."

It is concluded that by resson of the foregoing, regis-
trant, Itin, Campeau, Owens, Bruce, and Safford, singly and in
concert, wilfully violated and wilfully sided and abetted viola-
tions of Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act. The
responsibility of registrant, ltin, and Campeau is derived
from their direct participation in the offer and sale of unreg-
istered stock, and from the fact that Itin and Campeau were
the agents through whom registrant scted, as well as super-
vigors over registrant's salesmen.lﬁ, The acts of registrant
also become the acts of Owens, Bruce, and Safford as well as
of Itin and Campeau because of their participation in the over-

all scheme which involved the offer and sale of unregistered

stock to finance Hamilton Life. However, neither Bruce nor
Safford had duties while associsted with registrant nor did
they or Owens as part of registrant's '"control group" act

in a manner that thereby would have mede them responsible for

13/ Hughes v. S.E.C., 174 F. 2d 969, 977 (D.C.Cir. 1949);
Churchill Securities Corp., 38 S.E.C. 856, 859 (1959).

14/ Shearson Hamill & Co., Securities Exchange Act Release
No. 7743, p. 30 (November 12, 1965); Reynolds & Co., 39 S.E.C.

902, 917 (1960).
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15/
violations of Section S. Similarly, Reuter's duties did

not charge him with responsibility in connection with the
Hamilton Life offering, and since he had not yet joined the
scheme in which the others were participating, Reuter is
found not to have violated Section 5.

The evidence relied upon by the Division is not suffi-
cient for it to maintain its contention that an additional
out-of-state distribution took place when g part of the
original offering of Hamilton Life was resold by resident sub-
scribers before their shares had "come to rest." The
resales appear to have been made with stock obtained by
registrant from a number of small subscribers to the orig-
inal issue and through trades with other brokers who had
bought from or were selling for numerous small subscribers.
There is no substantial evidence indiceting that subscrib-
ers did not subscribe with the intent to hold their shares
for investment or that respondents sold or attempted to
sell to persons who did not intend to retain their shares
for investment.

The circumstances here sre not comperable to those

in Lewisohn Copper Corp., 38 S.E.C. 226 (1958), and Ned J.

15/ Cf. Schmidt, Sharp, McCabe & Company, Inc., Securities
Exchange Act Release No. 7690, p. 3 (August 30, 1965).
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Bowman, 39 S.E.C. 879 (1960), cited by the Division, where
initial purchasers who sold to non-residents were found to
have purchased for resale rather then for investment. In

the Lewisohn case, supra, only about 202 of the allocation to
broker-dealers found its way into the hands of customers of
those firms. The remainder was put into firm accounts,
accounts of members of the firm, and persons closely asso-
ciated with them, and resold from those accounts within a

short period of time. In Ned J. Bowman, supra, & long-time

ecquaintance of the president of issuer bought 177 of the
entire offering and resold alwmost all of that stock the fol-
lowing month to an out-of-sgtate broker-dealer who in turn sold
to non-resident investors.

A serious question is always raised, as the Division
points out, concerning whether ell of an issue has "come to
rest" where, as here, trading begins before stock has even
been issued to the original subscriber, and where orders have
been solicited from non-residents.lé/ But there must be more
than the doubt or 1nfercnce£l:aised by the Divigion in order

to rebut the evidence that respondents educed. They have

shown that the subscription forms wequired a subscriber to

16/ See Securities Act Release No. 4386 (1961).

17/ See Securities Act Release No. 4434, p. 3 (1961).
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state that he was purchasing for investment; that the offering
was sold in small blocks, except to certain persons closely
associated with Hamilton Life who did not resell during the
period in question; and, as noted, that the Hamilton Life stock
that registrant sold to non-residents after trading commenced
came from small subscribers or in the course of trading with
other brokers. Under the circumstances, it is concluded thet
the original offering of Hamilton Life stock had "come to rest'
prior to the commencement of trading. This conclusion, of
course, in no way affects the previous finding that within the
meaning of the Securities Act, sales to non-residents were
made by Itin and by Owens during the course of the original

offering.

Fraud in Offer end Sale of Hamilton Life Stock

Price Predictions

The testimony of numerous investors who were customers
of Campeau or of registrant's various salesmen establishes a
pervasive use of unwarranted predictions of rapid and extra-
ordinary price rises as a mesns to induce purchases of Hamilton
Life stock. The contrary testimony of Campeau and of the sales-
men, who testified that their customers were not told of such
prospective price increases, is not credited in light of the
disinterested character of the investors' testimony, the

demeanor of the witnesses, the repeated use of such price



predictions by numerous salesmen of registrant, and the like-
1ihood that Campeau infused into registrant's saleg force
his own practice of making extravagant price predictions.

Campesu told one of his customers that Hamilton Life
would "possibly hit 30 or so in four or five years" and that
he thought it had "extreme growth possibilities." A second
customer of his who bought in June, 1964, was told that
Hamilton Life stock looked so good "it might go to $50 a
share" by the end of the year, and & third customer was
informed with respect to Hamilton Life stock that 'this
will be a $50 stock in eighteen months.”

Richerd Zdziebko, then & salesman and now registrant's
vice-president, represented to a customer that Hemilton Life
vas a young, growing company whose stock could appreciate
to "around $30" within a year or two, and to another customer
that the stock "would go up because it weas a good stock,"
and that it was good investment on which he could make some
money.

Seven other of registrant's salesmen, Armstrong, Beals,
Pike, Poirier, Rabedeau, Mrs. Terio, and Wadsten, used repre-
sentations of a similar character in the offer and sale of
Hamilton Life stock. One customer of Armstrong testified that
in June, 1964 Armstrong had said that he thought it was a

good stock because it had risen from $4 to $20 per share and



that in his opinion "it might go to $40 a share," and another
customer recalled that Armstrong had said, at a time when the
market price was 19%, that the stock could "very easily go to
$30." 1In May, 1964 Beals expressed his opinion to a customer
that "the stock would go to $30 or $40" within no longer period
than a year. Pike urged a customer to sell other insurance
stock and reinvest in Hamilton Life stock at a price of 16

or 17 because he felt it would rise to 23 or 25 within a short
period. The next day Pike called his customer to advise him
that he could not purchase at 16 or 17 but recommended pur-
chasing at a higher price because he atill felt the price
would rise gshortly. The customer them agreed to purchase,
buying 210 shares at 19.

Poirer persuaded a customer to purchase Hamilton Life
stock by saying that it was '"a good buy" at the quoted price,
that there was a ''great demand for this particular stock," and
that he "didn't know what the price would be the next day or
the next week,' the latter statement carrying the implication
in context of the conversation that the price would possibly
be up as quickly as the next day or week. Rabedeau informed
one of his customers who purchased on June 8, 1964 thet
Hamilton Life stock was "very speculative,” could "go way

down, but also go way up,” and that he 'definitely expected
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it would go up around $30 by the first of the year."
Rabedegu induced another customer to buy on June 18 at a
price of 194 by saying that "they had bets on in the office
that 1t [ Hamilton Life stock] would go to 27 by the &4th of
July." 1In discussing Hamilton Life stock over the telephone
with a customer who placed an order during the conversation,
Mrs. Terio stated that "some peopl ¢ had said it would go to
$50 a share" and, in effect, that she couldn't see how the
company could miss. Wadsten's customer was induced to pur-
chase Hamilton Life stock on June 18, 1964 at 19% by Wadsten's
representing that the price of the stock had multiplied fast
and voicing his opinion that he didn't expect it to continue
to rigse at the previous rate but expected it would at least
“double or more than double in a year or two."

The representations concerning a prospective price
rise which were used by Camwpeau and registrent's salesmen
in offering and selling Hamilton Life stock were fraudulent
and misleading. The Commission has frequently inveighed
against projections of price rises to occur within relstively
brief periods of time, holding that "predictions of specific
and substamtial increases in the price of the speculative

18/
security are inherently fraudulent." There can be no

18/ Floyd Earl O'Gorman, Securities Exchange Act Release No.
7959, p. 3 (September 22, 1966); Crow, Brourman & Chatkin,
Inc., Securities Exchange Act Release No. 7839, p. 6
(March 15, 1966); Alexander Reid & Co., Inc., 40 S.E.C.
986, 991 (1962).
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question that during 1964 Hamilton Life stock was specu-
lative; it was & new insurance company in a highly compe-
titive field with no history of earnings nor any expecta-
tion of earnings in its first few years of operation.
True, there was apparent initial success in its insurance
sales efforts, but whether such success would continue,
and, if so, whether costs could be controlled and management
wvas of such caliber as to assure profitable operation were
sheer conjectures. The previous market action of Hemilton
Life stock certainly was not warrant for predicting fur-
ther incrcases.lgl

Respondents assert thet the price predictions that
the Commission has condemned have to be considered in con-
text of the cases in which the Commission expressed its
views, that the condemnation be limited to "boiler-room"
situations, and that the price prediction must be shown to
have been designed at least to induce purchases. Respond-
ents distinguish the present facts from those of previous
ceases relating to price predictions on the basis that here a
majority of the purchasers initiated the purchases, that
many were either established customers of registrant or
long-time friends of the salesmen, that there was no unfav-

orable news about Hamilton Life, that registrant's salesmen

19/ Cf. Crow, Brourman & Chatkin, Inc., supra, at 6 n. 11 of
cited release.




vere familiar with Hamilton Life's plan and operations,
that Hemilton Life stock was represented to be speculative,
and that the price predictions at most were mere expres-
sions of opinion. Not one of these distinctions is suffi-
cient to justify the price predictions used by registrant 's
salesmen.

Although many of the cases involving price predictions
that have come before the Commission have involved "boiler-
room" sales practices, and others included additional mis-
representations in effecting the sales therein considered,
there appears no basis for limiting the proscription egainst
price predictions in the fashion sought by respondents. On
the contrary, there is every reason to keep price predic-
tions to a minimum. Probably no representation or induce-
ment held out to a prospective investor could have a greater
impact upon his decision to purchase than thet of & price
rise, for most certainly the risks of loss and the prospects
of profit are of paramount importance to him. The customer
relies upon the securities salesman, supposedly trained and
knowledgeable regarding the "intricate merchandise" he is
offering. 1f a prediction is ventured, even though framed
as an opinion, the customer is entitled to assume that the
salesman has enough information about the company and its

security to support such prediction or opinion, and this
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vithout regard to whether it concerns the future price of
the stock or some other aspect of the company or its securi-
ties. Where thet basis is lacking, price predictions become
fraudulent just as any other representations do when made
without justification, and are every bit as fraudulent stand-
ing alone as when made in conjunction with other misrepre-
sentations. Coupling such predictions with references to the
speculative nature of the security teads to whet rather than
dampen the interest of the customer, for he is thereby inm-
pressed with the fact that the price action of the security
can be volatile. Relying upon the salesman, he believes
that any price change will be upward. Moreover, the regis-
trant, though not shown to be a "boiler-room," employed
salesman who utilized sales techniques, including price
predictions, favored in a "boiler-room" operation.gg/ At
least in certain instances a customer's investment needs
wvere ignored, financial information regarding Hamilton Life
not given, sales of other stock to obtain funds to buy
Hemilton Life encouraged, and hasty decisions induced by
reference to the unusual market activity in Hamilton Life.
Nor does the fact that purchasers of Hamilton Life stock

initiated the transaction or were long-time friends of salesmen

20/ See, w.g., Hamilton Waters & Co., Inc., Securities Exchange
Act Release No. 7725 (October 18, 1965).
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make the objectionable price predictions more acceptable.
An investor is entitled to fair-dealing at the hands of a
broker regardless of whether he is the one to make inquiry
about a particular stock or is solicited by the broker. And,
if anything, a salesman owes a higher duty to a "long-time
friend" than to & stranger, for the former may be expected
to repose trust and confidence in the recommendations of
the salesman whereas the latter would be inclined to exercise
a more independent judgment.

The absence of unfavorable news concerning Hamilton
Life, relied upon by respondents as a factor thet distinguishes
the present case from previous decisions involving price pre-
dictions, does not help the respondents. Even sbsent unfav-
orable developments, the information aveilsble to registrant's
salesmen regarding Hamilton Life was insufficient to warrant

their extravagent predictions.

Failure to Disclose Common Control

Since common control of Hemilton Life and of registrant
existed while registrant wes effecting transactions in Hamilton
Life stock with customers, registrant was required by Rule
1Scl-5 under the Exchange Act to make disclosure of such control

“before entering into any contract with or for such customer
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21/
for the purchese or sale of such security." The uncontra-

dicted testimony of invegtor-witnesses is that at the time
they made their purchases of Hamilton Life stock no disclosure
of such common control was made to them by registrant's sales-
men, Respondents, however, contend that e& disclosure of
registrent's relationship to Hemilton Life sufficient to com-
ply with Rule 15¢cl-5 may be found in the confirmations used
by registrant in connection with its Hamilton Life transactions.
The confirmations in question do not have the disclosure
respondents claim for them. The only indication that regis-
trant was under common control with Hamilton Life is found in
a printed legend on the reverse side of the confirmations
stating, "an officer of this corporation [ registrant] is a
director of the issuer of the security hereon." A code number
on the face of the confirmation is used as & reference to that
legend. Respondents concede that the legend ig inaccurate in
that, in fect, two officers end directors of the issuer were
directors of registrant during the period in question,
Respondents misconceive the disclosure required when
they view a factually inaccurate reference to a common relation-

ship between registrant and Hemilton Life as coming within the

21/ Rule 15cl-5 includes as a "manipulative, deceptive, or other
fraudulent device or contrivance" within the meening of Sec-
tion 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act the failure of g broker or
dealer to disclose to a customer that it is in & control
relationship with the issuer whose securities are involved
in the transaction to be effected with such customer or for

his account.
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intendment of Rule 15cl-5. Not only did the recipient of

such information not have notice of the common control through
a statement by registrant to that effect, he wes misled
regarding the nature of the relationship actually existing

and deprived of fects that would enable him to form his own

22/
conclusions.

Domination, Control, and Menipulation
of Market for Hamilton Life Stock

When approval for registrant to commence trading in
Hamilton Life stock was not forthcoming from the Michigan
Securities Commission by April 27, 1964, Itin telephoned offi-
cials of that agency. 1In the conversation, Itin spoke of
"the pressure of interest from both within the State of
Michigan and outside the State of Michigan.“gg:nd asked 1if
registrant could begin trading. When one of the officials
demurred to the commencement of trading before the stock
had been physically issued, Itin suggested that registrant be
pernitted to trade on a "when, as, and if issued" besis.
Registrant was then given permission to trade Hamilton Life

stock on that bssis, but upon condition that until April 30,

1964 only unsolicited buy and sell orders were to be executed.

22/ See I11 Loss, Securities Regulation, 1479 (2d ed. 1961).

23/ Registrent, according to 1tin, had a "pile of buy tickets"
and three sell tickets. 1In addition, inquiries about the
commencenent of trading had been received.
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Itin immediately informed Reuter that trading could
commence, and Reuter reacted by going down his keyboard, which
had direct telephone connections with fifteen to eighteen
broker -dealers, and asking each of those securities firms
whether it had buy or sell orders on Hamilton Life stock.

In every instance Reuter received a negative reply. When Itin
appeared in the trading room about fifteen minutes later with

a sheaf of orders that had been placed with registrant for
execution wvhen the market opened, Reuter told him of the lack
of interest by other firms. 1Itin's resolution of the impasse
caused by the absence of professional interest was toc open

the market by crossing orders placed with registrant, selling
100 sheres to a customer at 7%, and, eleven minutes later,
according to the time stamp, purchasing 100 shares from another
customer at 7. Itin then told Reuter, who was sitting across
the desk from him, that the market was 7-7%. Reuter, in turn,
called several brokers, telling thes that the market had
opened at 7, snd asking {f they had any stock. When one broker
asked 7% for 1,000 shares, Reuter consulted Itin and obtained
approval of the purchase. For the first three days, trading

in Hamilton Life stock was so heavy that Reuter asked for and
received assistance in the trading room from Itin and Campesu.
Itin executed all of the purchase orders received by regis-

trant from its customers, Reuter did the trading with other
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brokers, snd Campeau kept the record on registrant's position
in Hamilton Life stock. During this initial period, when
trading was on a "when, as, and 1if" basis, registrant’'s pur-
chases from other brokers of 24,150 shares accounted for about
75% of the total shares purchased in the wholesale market. In
these ssme three days registrant sold a mere 795 shares of
Hamilton Life in the wholesale market while selling nearly
25,000 shares to its retail customers. The majority of the
shares were sold to Itin's own customers, some of whom had
indicated their interest prior to the commencement of trading.
Prices to registrant's retail customers during this period
ranged from 7% to 9 7/8, with the price rising over the pre-
ceding retall price fifteen times in the first two days.

Registrant's purchases of nearly 174,000 shares from
other broker-dealers in Michigen during the entire period of
April 27, 1964 through August 31, 1964 represented over 60%
of all purchases in the wholesale market. The sales by regis-
trant to other broker-dealers during the same period aggre-
gated only slightly more than 34,000 shares. During the same
time registrant accounted for over 70% of all retail sales by
selling 224,104 shares to its customers.

Registrant first appeared in the sheets on April 29,
1964, the only broker that day. 1ts bid of 7 3/4 and ask of

8 1/4 on Hamilton Life stock increased by 1/2 both the bid and
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ask of the initial quotations of 7k - 7 3/4 placed in the
previous day's sheets by W. B, Wolf & Co. of Detroit. On
April 30 registrant, again the only broker in the sheets,
raised its quotes by 1% to 9 1/4 bid, 9 3/4 asked.

During the entire period in question, April 27 through
August 31, 1964, which eneompassed 89 trading days, regis-
trant appeared in the "pink" or "green'" sheetsgﬁér both 84
times, placing bid and ask quotations in 82 of these instances.
Of five other brokers also appearing in the sheets during the
same period, W. B. Wolf & Co. was in 48 times; Smith, Hague &
Co., 25 times; F. W, Winckler Co., 12 times; C. N. Davidson &
Co. placed ask prices on two days; and Wam. C. Roney placed
ask prices on three days. On 33 days, registrant was the only
broker placing a bid and ask price in the sheets, and it raised
its bid on fifteen of those days, lowered the bid on ten, and
kept its bid the same on the remaining eight days. Of the 49
days on which other brokers accompanied registrant in the
sheets, registrant had the high bid on 30 days, shared the
high bid on 10 days, and had & bid lower on nine occasions.

Registrant's trading in Hamilton Life stock during the

entire period also evidences an intent to raise the market

24/ The color of the paper on which the National Deily Quotation
Bureau, Inc. publishes its Eastern Section is pink; that for
the Western Section is green.
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price of that stock and to keep the level of the maerket on a
higher plane than dictated by normal interplay of buyers and
sellers in an open market. In addition to the predominant
purchases on the wholesale market and sales of that acquired
stock to retail customers having the effect of drying up the
floating supply of the stock, registrant maintained price
leadership in the actual day to day trading in the stock
amongst brokers in Michigan. 1In buying Hamilton Life stock
from other brokers, registrant in 187 instances raised its
price over the immediately preceding price paid by any broker
in the wholesale market, compared to the next highest broker-
dealer who had 44 reises and to the remaining 50 brokers-
dealers trading during the period of whom only eleven raised
their prices on the inside merket as many as ten times. With
respect to its customers, registrant in 264 instances upped
the sales price over that which immediately preceded in the
retail market. All other brokers accounted for a total of 12
similar raises.

Significantly, on each of the 22 trading days in June,
1964 registrant appeared alone in the quotation sheets, 20
times in the "pink,"” and 20 times in the "green." Registrant's
bids were raised on eleven days, were the same as its preceding
bid on four days, and were lowered on seven. During June,

registrant bought over 53,000 shares of Hamilton Life stock
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from other broker-dealers, thereby sccounting for over 75%

of the purchases in the wholesale market, while it was sell-
ing more than 77,000 shares to retail custowers, an amount
equal to nearly 852 of the total shares sold in the retail
market in June. During this month, registrant had a short
position on four days, June 2 to 5 inclusive, and a long posi-
tion of over 300 shares at the close of each of the remaining
eighteen trading days. Registrant's selling price to its
customers ranged from llk% on June 1 to & high of 20k charged
on June 19.

The surge in the prices during this brief period is
marked in particular by a 4 point rigse in the five day trading
period of June 15 - 19. During that period registrant's inven-
tory of Hemilton Life stock climbed from 388 shares to 1,888
shares at the close of June 19, reaching an interim high of
3,507 shares on June 18. After June 19 and for the rest of
the month, registrant's prices to its customers and in the
sheets declined, apparently because registrant's posgition in
Hemilton Life stock was getting too loag for Itin's liking.
Itin's own testimony was that asbout Jume 20, and over a period
of six or seven trading days to July 1, registrant "walked the
stock [Hamilton Life] back down" from 20 to 12 when its position
began getting long. 1Itin also testified that om July 1 there

was an hour or so during the trading day that the stock dropped
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from 15 or 16 to 11 or 12 while registrent had a "work-out"
narket.zzl During the five trading days following July 2 when
W. B. Wolf & Co. inserted a bid of 10k, the bids in the "pink”
sheets were successively higher each day, registrant being
the high bidder three times, including the fifth day when its
bid was 15.

The actions of Hemilton Life in placing newspeaper adver-
tisements of an extremely self-laudatory nature on April 22
and June 16, 1964 are also a material consideration on the
issue of manipulation. Although the inaccuracy in the June 16
advertisement, which represented that Hamilton Life had over
$15,000,000 of insurance in force whem in fact that amount had
been written but was not yet '"in force," may well have been
meterially misleading to a knowledgeable investor in insurance
stocks, the inaccuracy is not considered to be significant in
connection with the question of whether the stock was manipu-
lated. However, even granting respondents' cleim that the
primary purpose of these advertisements was to generate interest
in the insurance policies of Hamilton Life, it is not reasonable

under all the circumstances to view them as being without the

secondary purpose of stimulating interest of the investing public

25/ See Tr. 3370-71. A "work-out" market has been described as

T one in which a trader acts essentially as a broker and attempts
to find interest on the other side of the market. Shearson,
Hamill & Co., Securities Exchange Act Release No. 7743, p. 12
n. 22 (November 12, 1965).
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in the stock of Hamilton Life.

The picture thet emerges from the trading pattern and
other evidence relevant to registrent's trading and selling
activities is of a market for Hamilton Life stock dominated,
controlled and manipulated by registrant during the period
April 27, 1964 to August 31, 1964. With an eagerness amount-
ing to anxiety, and without ear for the cautionary words of
the president of the Detroit Stock Exchange, Itin caused
registrant to open the market at a price of his own choosing
in the absence of any independent interest, and thereafter
caused registrant to be an aggressive leader in the sheets in
connection with that market. At no time does it appear that
registrant dropped out of the market in order to let the
independent forces of the market prevail except upon the brief
occasion on July 1, 1964, The results experienced in that
instance, a sudden drop of three or four points within an hour
or so, is indicative of the control that registrant had imposed
upon the market for Hsmilton Life stock. Registrant was not
only the primary wholesale dealer but also the primary retailer
of Hemilton stock. 1t was upon registrant's ability, through
assiduous efforts by its salesman to place stock purchased in
the wholesale market, that the market depended. The market
created and nurtured by registerant was not subject to the vicis-

situdes of independent forces of supply and demand, but was a
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reflection of the efforts of those in control of registrant to
raise and control the prices at which Hemilton Life stock would
be treded or sold to the public. It is spparent that registrant
published quotations on and effected transactions in Hemilton
Life stock at prices that were arbitrary and artificial for the
purposes of raising the price level and creating a false and
misleading appearance of the trading activity of that security
and of its market. Doing so constituted a manipulative scheme
end device in violation of the securities act:.gg/

It is well settled that where a dealer dominates, con-
trols and manipulates the market in the security which it is
attempting to sell, it must make full disclosure thereof so that
the customer will not be misled into believing that the price
to be paid for the security has been reached in a free and open
l.tkat.gz, Moreover, such disclosure is eseential in order to
allow the customer to judge the marketsbility or liquidity of
the security. The failure to disclose registrant's dominstion,

control, and manipulation of the market for Hsmilton Life stock

was misleading to purchasers of that stock.

26/ Cf. R. L. Emacio & Co., Inc., 35 S.E.C. 191 (1953).

27/ See J. H., Godderd & Co., Inc., Secwurities Exchange Act Relsase
No. 7618 (Jume &, 1963); Bruns, Nordeman & Co., 40 S.E.C. 652,
659 (1961); Sterling Securities Company, 39 S.E.C. 487, 492
(1959); R, L. Emacio & Co., Inc., supra.
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Respondents assert that motivation, an important con-
sideration in the csses cited and relied upon by the Division,
is wissing here and that a "stock manipulation scheme . . . is
totally at odds" with respondents' plans for Hemilton Life.

The record refutes these assertions, showing not only that
respondents' personal fortunes would be enhanced by an increasse
in the price of Hamilton Life stock, but also that the success
of Hamilton Life was largely dependent upon its stock showing
market improvement.

As the respondents knew and stated in the Hamilton Life
prospectus, the life insurance business is highly competitive,
and Hamilton Life's success dependent upon its ability to sell
“"insurance and administer its affairs."” The prospectus expands
upon the methods to be.used to attract salesmen and administra-

28/
tive personnel by stating:

« « . Because it is a new venture, the Company

{Hemilton Life] has considered it sdvisasble to

attraet to itself, personnel experienced in the

administration and sales of life insurance, and

it is contemplated that the agency pregram

through which the insurance is to be sold and

the stock option plen will accomplish this.

The purpose of the stock optiom plan, together with some details

29/
of the plan, is egain referred to in the prospectus as follows:

28/ Owens Exhibit C., p. 10.

297 1d. at 7.
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The Company shall adopt an appropriate restricted
stock option plan for the purpose of attracting
and retaining the services of qualified sales and
executive personnel. . . . the option price will
be at least 95% of the feir market value at the
time the option is granted. 30/

The Company will set aside a maximum of 200,000
shares of its Class A Common Stock for stock option
purposes. At least 502 of such options shall be
allocated to general agents, sales agents, and
members of the Resident Advisory Board. 31/ The
remgining options shall be sllocated to o fficers,
directors and Home Office personnel. These op-
tions can be sllocated among both present and
future personnel. [Footnotes added.]

Underscoring the importance of stock options to Hamil-

ton Life's future are the following references in the pros-

32/
pectus to the problems of setting up its agency organization:

+ « o 1t may be difficult for the Company to
obtain the services of the older and more estab-
lished agents in the areas in which it proposes
to sell its policies.

¢ e s 0 LI } e & & e 2 s e e+ e o . s o - * o . LI

30/ Bruce testified that the option price was the price prevail-
ing at the time the option was issued. See Tr. 4491.

31/ The Resident Advisory Board consisted of 100 members in May,

" 1964 with each member to receive an option for 100 shares
at & price of $4, and the right to subscribe for up to 2,000
shares in the Hamilton Life offering. The members, who
resided in different communities throughout Michigan, were
supposed to assist Hamilton Life in finding ssles agents,
and to otherwise advance the company's interests in their
Tespective areas.

32/ Owens Exhibit C, p. 1l.




The Company proposes from time to time during its
early years of operation to grant non-assignable
options to purchase common stock to writing agents

and General Agents as production awards. There is

no assurance how much incentive said options would
provide theﬁéggntl, as other companies also provide
incentives to have sgents select their policies for
persons purchasing insurance. |Emphasis supplied.] 33/

The sales commission contract that Hamilton Life offered to
prospective sales personnel was '"551 to the agent, 70% top to
the regional director," and "it was less than almost every new
conpany."éﬁ, After writing $500,000 of insurance, a sales agent
received options at the rate of 20 ghares of common stock for
every $100,000 of insurance in force.

1t would be unrealistic to sssume that salesmen with
the qualifications looked for by respondents, and especially
those with established companies, would drop existing business
connections to go with Hamilton Life unless they believed such
move would be to their material advantage. Since Hamilton Life
elected to offer smaller commission contracts to sales person-
nel, the stock options had to have enough lure to compensate
them for the lower commissions and to induce them to make a

shift in their employment or sales efforts. Similarly, the

stock options offered to members of the advisory board and

33/ General agents were called regional directors by Hamilton

Life. Owens Exhibit C, p. ll.

34/ Tr. 4491 (Testimony of Bruce).
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administrative personnel would have to appear to have value
in the near future in order to induce them to associate
themselves with Hamilton Life. It was essential that the
market price of Hamilton Life ghow improvement, for if it
did not, the personnel upon whom Hemilton Life was completely
dependent for success would most naturally refuse Hamilton
Life's offers of employment, or if already with Hemiltom
Life, become dissatisfied with their valueless stock options
and soon leave for greener pastures. Respondents therefore
had a very real interest in whether the stock options became
valuable and in making a market for Hamiiton Life stock and
attempting a manipulation of the market price to assure that
such value became immedistely apparent.

Respondents' view that the "pink" and "green" sheets
are valueless in deciding whether a manipulation took place
is unacceptable. Even though the sheets are regarded by
brokers as nothing more than indications of the market, the
sheets still point to the brokers interested in trading in
a particular security and its approximate price renge. When
the same broker or brokers sppear in the sheets over a sus-
tained period at increasing prices, the impression created
is one of sctivity in which demand is consistently greater
than supply. The question is not, as the respondents indi-

cate, wvhether the sheets reflect a precise market price at a
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given time, which they do not, but whether they portray a
price rise over & period of time. Respondents' contention
that actual trading by other brokers and their presence in
the sheets at prices corresponding to those found in regis-
trant's quotations and trades indicates an absence of manip-
ulation has a serious flew. It is true that one of the
indicia of a free and independent market is the participation
in that market by several securities firms, but such partici-
pation does mot exclude the possibility of manipulation.
Here, the other brokers quoting or trading Hemilton Life
stock knew that registrant was the primary market maker,
were undoubtedly constantly aware of registrant’'s quotations,
and would recognize the potential of a trading profit with
little danger of serious loss by evidencing an interest in
Hemilton Life stock at or about the price range in which
they knew they could sell to registrant.

No substantial error has been found in the schedules
introduced by the Division covering the trading in Hamilton
Life stock during the relevant period nor in the approaches
used in the preparation of those schedules. The schedules
of "raises" or up-ticks in price need not take into consid-
eration the fact that prices had been lowered prior to the
upetick taking place nor include agency transactions before

becoming acceptable as evidence of registrant's intentions.
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The schedules serve, without the additions that respondents
ingist upon, to show that day after day registrant was
aggressive in trading up the price of Hamilton Life stock,
excepting only in those periods where registrant's inventory
outpaced the ability of registrant's salesmen to retail
registrant's purchases. Were the additions made, the appear-
ance of registrant's aggressiveness would yet remain, and it
is that aggressiveness in the light of the other evidence
adduced which is material and relevant on the issue of manip-
ulation.

Again with respect to registrant's apparent reduction
of the "floating supply" of Hamilton Life stock by siphoning
it off the wholesale market and into the hands of retail cus-
tomers, the action is regarded as only one aspect of the
trading that must be carefully weighed. Although, as respond-
ents claim, a characteristic of a principal market maker may
be the purchase of more shares from dealers then sold to

dealers, it is also true, as respondents concede, that such
35/

activity is likewise characteristic of the market manipulator.
The other arguments and contentions of respondents on

this issue are equally unpersuasive in the face of the comvinc-

ing evidence that respondents engaged in a manipulation to pro-

tect and increase their individual fortunes and that of Hemilton

Life.

35/ See, e.g., Barrett & Co., 9 S.E.C. 319, 327-28 (1941); Gob
Shops of America, Inc., 39 S.E.C. 92, 102 (1959).




- 51 -

Conclusions

As indicated, Owens, Bruce, and Safford, later joined
by registrant, Itin, Reuter, and Campesau, acted in concert
in carrying out a plan to launch Hamilton Life in the insur-
ance business and to provide a market for its stock. It
is concluded that in connection with that plan and as an
integral part of it, fraudulent offers and sales of Hamilton
Life stock were effected by means of unwarranted and extrav-
gant price predictions, by failure to disclose the existence
of common control over Hamilton Life and registrant, and by
failure to disclose the domination, control,end manipulation
of the market for Hamilton Life stock. 1t is further con-
cluded that by reason of the foregoing, respondents, singly
and in concert, wilfully violated, and wilfully aided and
abeéted violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act
and Sections 10(b) and 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act and Rules

10b-S and 15¢1-2 thereunder.

Hamilton Life Prospectus

During the course of the hearing, evidence relating
to the prospectus used in connection with the Hamilton Life
offering was introduced into the record. The Division con-
tends that the prospectus failed to disclose materisl facts
relating to the financing of Hemilton Life, and submits pro-

posed findings to the effect that the failure to disclose
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such facts made the prospectus misleading and its use a
violation of the anti-fraud provisions of the securities
acts. 1In opposing the Division, respondents argue that
the Order for Proceedings did not charge them with the
violation which the Division now alleges, and that respond-
ents did not have prior notice of that charge nor time to
prepare a defense against it.

The position of the respondents on this question is
well-taken. No finding or conclusion on whether a viola-
tion of the securities acts took place as a result of the
alleged deficiencies in the prospectus would be proper at
this time. The Order for Proceedings does not include adequate
notice that the Division was charging a violation arising out
of the use of a faulty prospectus and if the language of the
Ordér for Proceedings could be strained to imply that a pros-
pectus had been used in the offering of Hamilton Life stock,
there would still be no notice of the nature of the alleged
deficiencies in that prospectus. It is not enough to charge
a violation substantially in the words of a statute when the
statute itself does not adequately describe the offense.
There must be some defining of the nature and elements of
the offense charged to permit respondents to prepare their

36/
defense.  As to the Division's point thet the Order for

36/ See Michsel J. Meehan, 1 S.E.C. 238 (1935).
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Proceedings may be smended pursuant to Rule 6(d) of the
Rules of Practice to include the additional charge relating
to the prospectus, it suffices to note thaet no amendment
was requested nor authorized during the course of the hear-
ing, and that under Rule 6(d), the power of the hearing
officer to authorize amendments to matters of fact and law
ceases at the close of the hearing.

The conclusion reached on this question is not to
be construed as meaning that the evidence relating to the
prospectus is not relevant and material to other issues
properly charged in the Order for Proceedings. Quite the
contrary, for the testimony hes a bearing on the credibility
of the witnesses, and the prospectus furnishes, at very
least, a further insight into the relationships existing
between Owens, Bruce, Sefford, and Itin, and the preferen-
tial treatment accorded to them by Hamilton Life and Hamilton
Corp. Ilmportant, too, are the revealing references in the
prospectus to Hamilton Life's stock option plan and the need
for it.

False Confirmations Relating to
Windsor Raceway Stock

A registration statement pursuant to the Securities
Act wes filed on October 23, 1964 by Windsor Raceway covering
a proposed offering of 350,000 units of its Class A and B

stocks in units consisting of one share of each class of stock
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37/
and naming registrant as the underwriter thereof. A series

of amendments to the registration statement were filed which
caused the effective date of the registration statement to
be delayed until December 21, 1964,

Commencing on October 23, 1964 registrant's salesmen
solicited "indications of interest" in Windsor Raceway stock
from prospective investors and continued to do so until early
the next month, when the indications received totaled more
than the contemplated offering. Upon being advised on Decem-
ber 21, 1964 that the registration statement had become effec-
tive, Itin instructed registrant's sales force to call, if
possible that day, ali personsg who had indicated an interest,
and to firm up the indication previously given. 1tin further
‘;nfor-ed the sales force that exeept for persons whose names
they were to give to the office that day, everyone who had
indicated an interest would be gent a Windsor Raceway prospec-
tus and a confirmation of sale by meil that night. According
to 1tin, registrant mailed confirmations that evening in sccord-
ance with the stated procedure.

Amongst the persons to whom these confirmations of pur-
chase were sent were a large number who had mot been called by

registrant's salesmen on December 21, and who had never placed

_31/ S.E.C- Fil‘ NO. 2‘228680



an order for Windsor Raceway stock. Mrs. Terio, one of
registrant's salesmen, testified that on December 21 she

was able to telephone only 25 or 30 of the 150 prospective
investors who had previously given her indicetions of interest.
She was unable to recall whether at the end of that day she
informed Itin or any of the other supervisory personnel of
the extent of her cells. Mrs. Terio's testimony and that of
nembers of the public who either discleimed giving any indi-
cation of interest or stated that only an indication of inter-
est had been given to Mrs. Terio or another of registrant's
salesmen, make it clear that registrant mailed confirmations
of purchase of Windsor Raceway stock to persons who had not
ordered that stock. Some but not all of the purported sales
were canceled upon request, depending upon whether such re-
quests were received by registrant on or before January 8,
1965.

Registrant and Itin sttempt to equate the "indications
of interest" teken in the Windsor Raceway offering with "offers
to buy,” and argue that registrant was accepting those "offers
to buy" when confirmations were sent to persons who had pre-
viously given "indicationz of interest.” Neither the authori-
ties wpon which they rely nor the facts in the record support

their position.
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In asserting that an indication of interest is "an

38/
euphemism for the taking of ‘offers' in the statutory sense,"

respondents misquote their authority, I Loss, Securities Regula-

tion, 215 (2d ed. 1961). The quotation referred to reads core
rectly, "a euphemism for the making of 'offers' in the statutory
sense. . . ." [Emphasis supplied]. The difference is critical,
for the correct quote not only fails to support, but refutes,
respondents' submitted equation, and substitutes the thought
that the solicitation of "indications of interest" should be
looked upon as the undervriter's offers to sell. That Loss does
not agree with respondents is further indicated by the subsequent
suggestions on appropriate conduct during the waiting period
found in that treatise, id. at 224:

Perhaps the safest technique is to solicit offers

to buy, which the seller can then accept after the

effective date. . . . Or he can simply "offer" in

the statutory sense by soliciting "indications of

interest" and state that no offer for a contract

(in the common law sense) will be made until the
effective date.

The excerpt from the case of Franklin, Meyer and Barnett, 37 S.E.C.

39/

47, 50 (1956) used by registrant and itim in their brief is of no

aid to the respondents, for the instructions given by the partner

38/ Brief of Respondents Armstrong Jones and Company and Thomas W.
Itin, p. 66.

39/ P. 71.
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of that registrant to its salesmen included a direction that
"indications of interest had to be 'firmed up' before a con-
firmation of sale could be seat to the customer." 1I1f the
"indications of interest" were in reality "offers to buy,"

there would have been no need for the Franklin partner to "firm
up" those indications; confirmations could have been sent without
that additional step.

That "offers to buy" Windsor Racewsy stock were mot
being taken by registrant's saleswen is alsoc spparent from the
credible testimony in the record. The convershtions that the
salesmen had with prospective investors were not couched in
language indicating either that the salesmen were seeking, or
that the prospects were giving, "offers to buy." Rather,
those conversations reflect the usual and eustomary solicita-
tion by salesmen of an underwriter that is attempting to test
the extent of the interest in its contemplated underwriting.
1t appears that the present contentions are defanses contrived
for use in these proceedings, and that at the time of the
solicitations 1tim considered the “indications of interest"
in no other light then preliminary inquiries.

By sending confirmations of unauthorized transactions
in Windsor Raceway stock, registrant represented to the recip-

ient of each confirmation that a sale had taken place based
40/
upon the existence of effective orders or authority.

40/ Shelley, Roberts & Co., 38 S.E.C. 744, 751 (1958).
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Inasmuch as the recipients had neither placed an order nor
authorized a purchase of Windsor Raceway stock for their
accounts, registrant's representetion was false and consti-
tuted a wilful violation of Section 17(a) f the Securities

Act and Sections 10(b) and 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act and
Rules 10b-5 and Rule 1l5¢cl-2 thereunder.ﬁl/ In addition, because
the use of false confirmations also involves the making of
false and fictitious rocordl,&ziegiltrant vilfully violated
Section 17(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 17a-3 thereunder.

It is further concluded that Itin by v{rtue of his
responsibility for registrant's conduct and for the conduct of
the salesmen under his supervision, wilfully aided and abetted
registrant's violations, and wilfully violated Section 17(a)
of the Securities Act and Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
and Rule 10b-5 thereunder. Reuter's duties a&s a director of
registrant and as its vice-president were not such as would
make him responsible for the violations that occurred in connec-
tion with the Windsor Raceway offering. It is concluded that
Reuter, ss well as Cempeau, Owens, Bruce, and Safford who the

Division concedes were not involved in this espect of regis-

trant's operstions, did not commit such violations.

41/ R. A, Holman & Co. v. S.E.C., 366 F. 2d G446, 451 (2d Cir.
1966).

42/ Shelley, Roberts & Co., supra.
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Due Process

Respondents complain that due process has not been
accorded to them in these proceedings as & result of the
unfair investigation that preceded the institution of the
proceedings,the refusal of the Division to allow respondents
to exemine prior statements of witnesges until after they
had completed their direct testimony at the hearing, and
the submission by the Division of distorted Proposed Findings
of Fact. None of these complaints has substance.

There is nothing in the record that indicates the
Division took an inordinate amount of time to investigate
this matter or took undue advantage of those who were inter-
viewed. The time that elapsed from the indicated inception
of the Divigion's investigation to the institution of these
proceedings appears quite normal, if not less than might be
expected, considering the nature and complexity of the case
that grew out of that investigation. Further, none of the
matters specified in the respondents' proposed findings and

upon which they rely for support of alleged unfairness during

the investigation is established to an extent that creates

doubt about the due process accorded respondents.

The Division's refusal to furnish the prior statement

of a witness before he had completed his direct testimony was
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43/
in accord with the so-called Jencks :tatute,—-whose appli-

cability the Commission extended as a matter of policy and
practice to its administrative hearingc.ﬂé/ It is also

noted that the Division made an offer to turn over s witness'
statement the night prior to thet witness teking the stand

upon condition that opposing counsel not communicate with

the witness before he took the stand. Counsel for one respond-
ent took advantage of that offer; the others could have. Fur-
ther, there was no denial of any request for a recess or
edjournment to permit examination of such statements before
cross-examinstion. It is assumed thst when counsel did proceed
with cross-examination, they felt adequately prepared to conduct
it. This is not to say that counsel for respondents might not
have better prepared for such cross-examination if they had

the statements of the witnesses earlier, nor that the hearing
might not have been expedited to some extent if the Division
had been willing to release the statements in question when first
requested to do so. However, the eiection belonged to the Divi-

sion, and due process was not impaired by its refusal to accede,

except upon condition, to the respondents' request.

43/ 18 U.S.C. §3500 (1957).

44/ Codification of this policy and practice was effected by the
adoption on August 2, 1966 of Rule 11.1 of the Rules of

Practice.



Respondents' claim that due process was denied to theam
because of the character of the Proposed Findings of Fact
submitted by the Division is nothing more than frivolous. In
these proceedings, the Division is an advocate, and it is to be
expected that the Division would act in thet fashion not only
during the hesring, but im conmection with the post-hearing
procedures. The Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law submitted by the Division are entirely proper, and no less
s0 because some of its proposals have been rejected as not

being consistent with the findings herein.

Public Interest

In view of the serious and extensive nature of the vie-
lations established by the record, the respondents' conten-
tions that sanctions are not appropriate in the public inter-
est must be rejected. However, the mitigative aspects of the
circumstances respondents urged have been taken into considera-
tion in assessing the sanctions which need be imposed.

It is concluded that registrant's registration as a
broker-dealer should be revoked, that registrant be expelled
as a member firm in the Detroit Stock Exchange and from member-
ship in the NASD, and that 1tin be barred from association with
s broker-dealer. Because it is believed that the public would
not be endangered if Itin were allowed to work in a supervised

capacity, it would be appropriate to permit him, after one yesr,
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to be employed by a broker-dealer in a supervised capacity.
These sanctions, severe as they are, are warreanted by Itin's
demonstrated lack of concern for his responsibilities to the
public in his role as principal of registrant. Under Itin's
stewardship, registrant's activities in the original offer-
ing and subsequent trading of Hamilton Life stock were devoted
primarily to the advancement of his personal interests and
those of Owens, Bruce, and Safford. There is an open question
as to whether Itin, a newcomer to the securities business,
realized the full import of his manipulative activities in

the stock of Hemilton Life; if there were not, the bar would
be without qualification. Giving Itin the benefit of the
doubt does not change the conclusion that Itin over a long
period of time showed an inexcusable ineptness or unwillingness
to upgrade registrant's operational and sales practices to a
level in keeping with the standerds required of a broker-
dealer. Even if registrant's misconduct were to be attributed
solely to Itin's inexperience, the interests of the investing
public would still require the indicated sanctions. Although
the extent of the injury to investors is not -usceptible to
precise determination, it was substantial, ard occurred when
purchasers were forced to pay artificially inflated prices

for Hamilton Life stock. The failurs to register that stock

under the Securities Act deprived investors of material
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information concerning Hamilton Life to which they were
entitled. Had such information been available, it might
well have dampened an investor's enthusiasm for the stock
during the offering and thereafter. Further, there is no
assurance that the false confirmations sent by registrant
did not cause persons who would not have otherwise ordered
Windsor Raceway stock to accept that stock and make pay-
ments in accordance with registrant's demands.

It is concluded that Reuter should be expelled as a
member of the Detroit Stock Exchange and suspended from
association with a broker-dealer for a period of six months.
Reuter's participation in the fraudulent scheme found herein
is aggravated by the fact that he lent his experience and
reputation to an illegal enterprise that could not have
been placed in operation without his assistance. His pre-
vious unblemished record of 35 vears in the securities busi-
ness and the high regard in which he is held by others in
the securities industry who have had long acquaintance with
him argue strongly and effectivaiy egai.st a sanction greater
than that indicated.

It is8 concluded that Campeau should be barred from asso-
ciation with a broker-dealer with a right, after six months, to
spply for permission to re-enter the securities business under

adequate supervision. Campeau':z conduct, taking into account
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his prior experience with his own securities firm, clearly
demonstrates his inadequacy as a sales manager or as a prin-
cipal of a broker-dealer. But serious as his misconduct was,
it does not appear under all of the circumstances that the
public interest would be in jeopardy if he were permitted to
return to the securities business in an adequately supervised
position.

It is conciuded that Owens sheuld be barred from asso-
ciation with a broker-dealer and that Bruce and Safford each
be suspended from association with a broker-dealer for six
months. The record reflects the leadership and domination of
Owens in the conception and operation of respondents' scheme
to promote, finance, and obtain a sales force for Hamilton
Life. On the other hand, Bruce and Safford, although by no
means mere tools, were basically sales-oriented. They appear
to have relied in lasrge part on Owens' judgment in matters
affecting Hamilton Life's securities, and did not participate
in the day to day operations of registrant. It is also to
the credit of Bruce and Safford chat their candor on the wit-

ness stand was considerably greater then tihat of Owens. The

noted differences justify the disparity of thc sanction imposed

45/
against Owens as compared to those of Bruce and Safford.

45/ All proposed findings and coaclusions éubmitted by the
parties have been considered, as have “heir contentions.
To the extent such proposal . anc contentions are con-
sistent with this initial decision, they are accepted.



Accordingly, IT 1S ORDERED that the registration as
a broker-dealer of Armstrong Jones and Company is revoked,
and the company is expelled as a member firm of the Detroit
Stock Exchange and from membership in the National Associa-
tion of Securities Dealers, Inc.; that Thomas W. Itin, Rene
F. Campeau, and E. Keith Owens are each barred from associa-
tion with a broker-dealer, except that Thomas W. Itin after
a period of one year from the effective date of this order,
or Rene F. Campeau, after a period of six (6) months from
the effective date of this order, may become associated with
a registered broker-dealer in a non-supervisory capacity
upon an appropriate showing to the staff of the Commission
that he will be adequately supervised; that George A. Reuter
is expelled from the Detroit Stock Exchange; and that George
A. Reuter, Charles H. Bruce, and Robert O. Safford are each
suspended from association with a broker~-dealer for a period
of six months from the effective date of thif order.

This order shall become effective in accordance with
and subject to the provisions of Rule 17(f) of the Rules of
Practice.

Purswant to Rule 17(f) of the Rules of Practice, this
initial decision shall become the final decision of the Com-
mission as to each party who has not, within fifteen days

after service of this initial decision upon him, filed a
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petition for review of this initial decision pursuant to
Rule 17(b), unless the Commigsion, pursuant to Rule 17(¢),
determines on its own initiative to review this initial
decision as to him. I1f a party timely files a petition
for review, or the Commigsion takes action to review as to
a party, the initial decision shall not becowe final with

respect to that party.

Warren E, Blair
Hearing Examiner

Washington, D. C.
February 24, 1967



